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_NOTIQE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of Hansom Eastern (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) will be held on Friday, 23rd August, 2002 at Banquet Room 9, City Garden Hotel, 9 City Garden
Road, North Point, Hong Kong at 9:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements and the reports of the directors and auditors of
the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2002.

2. To re-elect directors of the Company and to fix their remuneration.

3. To re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company and to authorise the board

of directors of the Company to fix their remuneration.

By Order of the Board
Hansom Eastern (Holdings) Limited
Kwong Wai Tim, William
Managing Direcror

Hong Kong, 18¢h July, 2002

Notes:

1. The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 21st August, 2002 to Friday, 23rd
August, 2002, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be a
member of the Company enritled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Secretaries Limited, at 5th Floor,
Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, not later than 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 20th August,
2002.

2. Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting of the Company shall be entitled to appoint
another person as his proxy to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy duly appointed is entitled to vote on a show
of hands at the meeting. On a poll vores may be given cither personally or by proxy. A proxy need not be a member

of the Company. A member may appoint more than one proxy to attend on the same occasion.

3. The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or
a notarially certified copy of that power or authority shall be deposited at the Company’s share registrar, Secretaries
Limited, at 5th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before
the time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting or poll (as the case may be) ar which the person named in

such instrument proposes to vote, and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

4. Where there are joint registered holders of any share, any one of such persons may vote at the meering, either
personally or by proxy, in respect of such share as if he were solely entitled thereto; but if more than one of such
joint holders be present at the meeting personally or by proxy, that one of the said persons so present whose name

stands first on the register of members in respect of such share shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof.

5. A form of proxy for use at the annual general meeting is enclosed with this Annual Report.
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FINAL RESULTS

For the year under review, the Group recorded a turnover of HK$240.683,000 (2001: HK$322,476,000) and a
net loss of HK$47,675,000 (2001: HK$84,147,000). Loss per share was HK2 cents. The Groﬁp’s loss from
operations was reduced by 44% to HK$72,839,000 (2001: HK$129,563,000), mainly because the Group had
disposed of its remaining interest in the loss-making pharmaceutical, health products and foodstuffs operations

during the year.

Owing to the adoption by the Group of a new accounting policy for goodwill in the currenc year, the Group
reported net loss for the year ended 31st March, 2001 was restated and increased by a prior year adjustment of
HK$48,674,000, representing the impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill arising from the acquisition

of an associate during that year.
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year.
BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year under review, the Group continued to engage in the four major business segments, namely,
provision of finance, trading and investment in securities, property holding and investment, and investment
holding. The Group discontinued its pharmaceutical, health products and foodstuffs operations during the year,
and has acquired certain new investments, including the equity interest in a company engaged in the manufacturing
of GPS-based public security systems and devices in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), ahd part of the
shopping mall of Metropolitan Plaza located in Shenzhen, the PRC. The acquisition of the shopping mali
property is expected to be completed by the end of 2002.

Provision of Finance

The Group’s money lending operation registered a profit of HK$5,869,000 for the current financial year.
Revenue from this business segment increased by 35% to HK$6,533,000 (2001: HK$4,830,000) with the size
of the loan portfolio expanded considerably when compared to last year. The Directors will continue to closely

monitor the performance of this operation so as to maintain its positive contribution to the Group’s results.
Trading and Investment in Securities

Largely due to the rather weak performance of the local stock market during the second-half of the Group’s
financial year, this business segment continued to incur a loss of HK$9,504,000 for the year under review
(2001: HK$16,905,000). The Group’s securities holdings were all liquidated before the year qnd and funds

available had been provisionally put to other operational use.

HANSOM EASTERN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

4 Property Holding and Investment

The Group’s property operations incurred a loss of HK$11,105,000 for the current year. The fall in market

value of the Group’s existing property portfolio in the PRC had caused the operations to recognise impairment

ANNUAL REPORT

loss and valuartion deficits totalled HK$11,680,000, although rental income generated from the portfolio remained
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stable ar about HK$2,100,000. Taken as a whole, the Group’s existing property portfolio is under-performing
due to its low occupancy rate and limited prospect of value growth. Various alternatives are now being considered

by the Directors for better utilisation of financial resources allocated to this business segment.
Investment Activities

For the year under review, income from investments increased by 51% to HK$5,117,000 (2001: HK$3,378,000),
in spite of an impairment loss of HK$37,000,000 that was recognised for an investment in a financial services
group, whose subsidiaries are principally engaged in the securities brokerage and corporate finance advisory
services, due to the worsening of its financial position. The mixed performance among the various investments

had caused the Group’s investment activities to record an overall loss of HK$34,272,000.
Pharmaceutical, Health Products and Foodstuffs

In November 2001, the Group discontinued its pharmaceutical, health products and foodstuffs operations by
disposing of its remaining 51% interest in Tung Fong Hung Investment Limited (“TFHI”). The operations of
TFHI have been loss-making for many years, up to the date of disposal, the operations posted a loss of
HK$12,418,000 (before minority interests) to the Group’s current year results. The Directors consider that the
disposal of TFHI is beneficial to the Group as it will alleviate the adverse pressure on the Group’s future
financial performance, and allow the Group’s financial resources to be pur te more effective use. The disposal of
the 51% interest in TFHI was made pursuant to the exercise of a put option arrangement previously entered,
the consideration for sale was HK$45,900,000, and a gain on disposal of HK$24,525,000 was recorded by the
Group.

Acquisitions and Disposals

Since the last financial year, a series of asset acquisitions and disposals have been made by the Group. During
the current financial year, the Group disposed of its remaining interest in TFHI as mentioned and acquired a
14% interest in a company specialised in providing the ‘intelligent home’ property management system. The
company is focusing on the large-scale residential property market in the Mainland and is expected to achieve a

continual sales growth in the coming years.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, in April 2002, the Group entered into agreements with the vendors of
Henan Xingbang Pharmacy Limited (“Xingbang Pharmacy”) to terminate the acquisitions of the entire equity
interest in Xingbang Pharmacy. The vendors have not obtained the requisite approvals, including the conversion
of Xingbang Pharmacy into a wholly foreign-owned enterprise, from the relevant authorities in the PRC after a
prolonged extension of the completion date. As a result, the Directors consider that it is in the best interests of
the Group to terminate the acquisitions and to recover the deposits paid. Deposits plus accrued interests agreed
to be refunded by the vendors amounted to HK$88,802,000, up to present, an aggregate amount of
HK$59,959,000 has been received by the Group according to the termination agreements. In the same month,
the Group acquired a 66.7% interest in a PRC equity joint venture company engaged in the manufacturing of
GPS-based public security systems and devices. The products of this company are of wide applications and the

Directors are optimistic about its future performance.
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In May 2002, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire part of the shopping mall of Metfopolitan Plaza
with an approximate gross floor area of 12,115 sq.m. for a consideration of HK$182,868,000.§ Metropolitan
Plaza is located in Fu Tian District, being one of the most business thriving districts in Shenzhen,land is in close
proximity to Huang Gang Boundary Crossing. It is now under construction and is expected to be completed by

the end of 2002. The Directors consider that the shopping mall property has good investment poltential in view

of its location and the large development scale of Metropolitan Plaza. Also in May 2002, iL light of the
continual soft market sentiment and uncertainty of the internet businesses, the Group decided to recover the
investment in a convertible note of HK$53,000,000 issued by a technology holding company. A large part of
the convertible note principal of HK$43,000,000 plus accrued interest have been received by the Group and the

remaining balance of HK$10,000,000 will be wholly repayable before the end of 2002.

Business Prospect

The Group is in the transitional stage of rationalise its asset portfolio and to promote efficiency of the various
aspects of its operations. Positive steps including the disposals of some under-performing assets arid cost-curtting
measures have been undertaken, and performance of the Group’s various business segments are constantly being
assessed by the Directors. To further the Group’s objective of improving return to our sharcholders, certain new
investments aiming to foster the Group’s earning base have also been made, which coupled with the result that
Mainland related investments now represent a greater portion of the Group’s asset portfolio. The Directors are
optimistic thar these Mainland’s investments will continue to be benefited by the strong momentum of the

country’s economic growth, and will generate favorable returns to the Group when they mature.
Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31st March, 2002, the Group had about 20 employees including directors. The Group remunerates its
employees according to their performance, nature of the job and general market trends. Remuneration of
employees are reviewed on an annual basis. Remuneration packages, including the grant of share oprions, are

structured to motivate individual performance and contribution to the Group.
FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At the balance sheet date, the Group was in strong liquidity position with net current assets?amounred to
HK$438,202,000, representing an increase of 33% when compared ro HK$330,506,000 last year. The Group
was also in nec cash position, holding bank balances and cash totalled HK$42,404,000 with no baﬁk borrowing.
Properties held for resale with a carrying value of HK$30,000,000 were pledged to secure a rjevolving loan
facility that was unutilised at year end. |

With the amount of liquid assets on hand as well as the available credit facilities, the Directors a}e of the view

that the Group has sufficient financial resources to satisfy its ongoing operational requirements.
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stable at about HK$2,100,000. Taken as a whole, the Group’s existing property portfolio is under-performing
due to its low occupancy rate and limited prospect of value growth. Various alternatives are now being considered

by the Directors for better utilisation of financial resources allocated to this business segment.
Investment Activities

For the year under review, income from investments increased by 51% to HK$5,117,000 (2001: HK$3,378,000),
in spite of an impairment loss of HK$37,000,000 that was recognised for an investment in a financial services
group, whose subsidiaries are principally engaged in the securities brokerage and corporate finance advisory
services, due to the worsening of its financial position. The mixed performance among the various investments

had caused the Group’s investment activities to record an overall loss of HK$34,272,000.
Pharmaceutical, Health Products and Foodstuffs

In November 2001, the Group discontinued its pharmaceutical, healch products and foodstuffs operations by
disposing of its remaining 51% interest in Tung Fong Hung Investment Limited (*TFHI”). The operations of
TFHI have been loss-making for many years, up to the date of disposal, the operations posted a loss of
HK$12,418,000 (before minority interests) to the Group’s current year results. The Directors consider that the
disposal of TFHI is beneficial to the Group as it will alleviate the adverse pressure on the Group’s future
financial performance, and allow the Group’s financial resources to be put to more effective use. The disposal of
the 51% interest in TFHI was made pursuant to the exercise of a put option arrangement previously entered,
the consideration for sale was HK$45,900,000, and a gain on disposal of HK$24,525,000 was recorded by the
Group.

Acquisitions and Disposals

Since the last financial year, a series of asset acquisitions and disposals have been made by the Group. During
the current financial year, the Group disposed of its remaining interest in TFHI as mentioned and acquired a
14% interest in a company specialised in providing the ‘intelligent home’ property management system. The
company is focusing on the large-scale residential property market in the Mainland and is expected to achieve a

continual sales growth in the coming years.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, in April 2002, the Group entered into agreements with the vendors of
Henan Xingbang Pharmacy Limited (“Xingbang Pharmacy”) to terminate the acquisitions of the entire equity
interest in Xingbang Pharmacy. The vendors have not obtained the requisite approvals, including the conversion
of Xingbang Pharmacy into a wholly foreign-owned enterprise, from the relevant authorities in the PRC after a
prolonged extension of the completion date. As a result, the Directors consider that it is in the best interests of
the Group to terminate the acquisitions and to recover the deposits paid. Deposits plus accrued interests agreed
to be refunded by the vendors amounted to HK$88,802,000, up to present, an aggregate amount of
HK$59,959,000 has been received by the Group according to the termination agreements. In the same month,
the Group acquired a 66.7% interest in a PRC equity joint venture company engaged in the manufacturing of
GPS-based public security systems and devices. The products of this company are of wide applications and the

Directors are optimistic abour its future performance.
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In May 2002, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire part of the shopping mall of Metropolitan Plaza
with an approximate gross floor area of 12,115 sq.m. for a consideration of HK$182,868,000; Metropolitan
Plaza is located in Fu Tian District, being one of the most business thriving districts in Shenzhen,: and is in close
proximity to Huang Gang Boundary Crossing. It is now under construction and is expected to be completed by
the end of 2002. The Direcrors consider that the shopping mall property has good investment potential in view
of its location and the large development scale of Metropolitan Plaza. Also in May 2002, in light of the
continual soft marker sentiment and uncertainty of the internet businesses, the Group decided to recover the
investment in a convertible note of HK$53,000,000 issued by a technology holding company. A large part of
the convertible note principal of HK$43,000,000 plus accrued interest have been received by the Group and the
remaining balance of HK$10,000,000 will be wholly repayable before the end of 2002.

Business Prospect

The Group is in the transitional stage of rationalise its asset portfolio and to promote efficiency of the various
aspects of its operations. Positive steps including the disposals of some under-performing assets and cost-cutting
measures have been undertaken, and performance of the Group’s various business segments are constantly being
assessed by the Directors. To further the Group’s objective of improving return to our shareholders, certain new
investments aiming to foster the Group’s earning base have also been made, which coupled with the result that
Mainland related investments now represent a greater portion of the Group’s asset portfolio. The Directors are
optimistic that these Mainland’s investments will continue to be benefited by the strong momentum of the

country’s economic growth, and will generate favorable returns to the Group when they mature. ;
Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31st March, 2002, the Group had about 20 employees including directors. The Group remunerates its
employees according to their performance, nature of the job and general market trends. Remuneration of
employees are reviewed on an annual basis. Remuneration packages, including the grant of share options, are

structured to motivate individual performance and contribution to the Group.
FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At the balance sheet date, the Group was in strong liquidicy position with net current assets, amounted to
HK$438,202,000, representing an increase of 33% when compared to HK$330,506,000 last year. The Group
was also in net cash position, holding bank balances and cash toralled HK$42,404,000 with no bank borrowing.
Properties held for resale with a carrying value of HK$30,000,000 were pledged to secure a revolving loan

facility that was unutilised at year end.

With the amount of liquid assets on hand as well as the available credit facilities, the Directors are of the view

that the Group has sufficient financial resources to satisfy its ongoing operational requirements.




Foreign Currency Management

At present, the Group’s foreign currency transactions are mostly denominated in Renminbi. As the exchange
rate of Hong Kong dollars to Renminbi was relatively stable in the past years, the Directors consider that the
Group’s exposure to exchange rate risk is not significant. Appropriate measures will be undertaken by the Group

to meet changes in circumstances.
Shareholders’ Funds

The Group’s capital base has been substantially strengthened following the Company’s share placement and
rights issue in May and August 2001 respectively which together raised new funds of HK$221,863,000 (net of
expenses). Shareholders’ funds of the Group increased sharply by 51% to HK$504,116,000 at 31st March, 2002
(2001: HK$333,800,000), which is equivalent to a net asset value of HK16 cents per share of the Company.

New funds raised during the year have been principally applied towards the acquisitions of the 14% interest in a
company specialised in providing the ‘intelligent home’ property management system; the acquisition of the
66.7% interest in a company engaged in the manufacturing of GPS-based public security systems and devices;
the enlargement of the loan portfolio of the money lending business and the addition to general working capiral

of the Group.
APPRECIATION

The year under review was another challenging year for the Group. Taking this opportunity, the Board of
Directors would like to thank all management and staff for their hard work and loyal service throughout the

year.
On behalf of the Board

Kwong Wai Tim, William
Managing Direcror

Hong Kong, 18th July, 2002
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwong Wai Tim, William, aged 45, joined the Company as the Managing Director in November 2000.
He is in charge of the overall strategic planning and public relation of the Group. He holds a MBA degree from
the University of Oregon, U.S.A.. Mr. Kwong has over 15 years’ experience in banking and corporate finance
gained with major international financial institutions including Citicorp, Bankers Trust, Credit Lyonnais Asia
Limited and The New China Hong Kong Capital Limited. He was a member of the Council of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 1995 to 1997 and a Director and Chairman of the Finance Committee
of Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited from 1996 to 1997. He was an Executive Director of 139
Holdings Limited from August 1998 to August 2000 and was a Director of IFTA Pacific Holclmgs Limited from
July 1999 to March 2000.

Ms. Yau Shum Tek, Cindy, aged 32, joined the Company as an Executive Director in November 2000. She is
in charge of the overall management and administration of the Group. Ms. Yau graduated from Chong Qing
Nursing School ( B T 74 242 ) and has extensive experience in the trading of domestic electrical appliances
and property development in Mainland China. Ms. Yau wholly owns and controls Red China Holdings Limited
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Substantial;Shareholders”

in the Directors’ Report.

Mr. Lai Ming Wai, aged 43, joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive Director in November
2000 and was redesignated as Executive Director in January 2001. He is in charge of the business development
and new projects/investments of the Group. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
in Social Sciences degree. Mr. Lai was the Vice President of the Bank of America and was involved'in developing

the bank’s business in Mainland China. He has over 18 years’ experience in banking and international finance.

Mr. Terrence Lai, aged 45, joined the Company as an Executive Director in November 2000. He is in charge of
the corporate planning and treasury of the Group. Mr. Lai holds a Bachelor of Administration dégree and is a
member of the Society of Management Accountants of Oncario, Canada. He has over 20 years’ experience in

management, finance and corporate development in Hong Kong and Canada.

Mr. Wang Chun Lin, aged 50, joined the Company as an Executive Director in December 2000. He is in
charge of the business development and new projects/investments of the Group. Mr. Wang graduated from
Fudan University (8 B X2 ) . He has extensive experience in the trading and production of electronic products,
research and development on computer software and marketing in Mainland China. He was the Managing
Director of Beijing Hwa Meng Enterprises Company (1t R ZE B B X 20 &), a property investment and

development company in Mainland China.

Mr. Chen Peihua, aged 35, joined the Company as an Executive Director in June 2002. He is in charge of the
business development and new projects/investments of the Group. Mr. Chen graduated from Changsha University
of Electric Power (=B A 2% ) . Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen held senior positions in securities

companies in Mainland China and has over 15 years’ experience in securities and finance. !
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Mr. Lam Ping Cheung, aged 50, joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive Director in November
2000. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor in Social Science degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a
solicitor and sole-proprietor of Messrs. C. L. Chow & Lam. He is also an Independent Non-executive Director
of Golden Resources Development International Limited, Kith Holdings Limited, Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings
Limited, China United Holdings Limited, and Qualipak International Holdings Limited, which are publicly

listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Kwong Kai Sing, Benny, aged 43, joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive Director in
February 2001. Mr. Kwong graduated from Simon Fraser University in British Columbia, Canada with a
Bachelor degree in Arts. He held senior positions with major international banks in Hong Kong in their
respective lending departments and China department for many years. For the past 8 years, he has served as
executive director of over 10 publicly listed companies in Hong Kong, Canada and the United Kingdom.
Mr. Kwong has extensive knowledge in corporate finance and banking. He was an appointed member of the
China People’s Political Consultative Committee of the Hubel Province in 1995-1996 and is an honorary
advisor of the Hubei Province Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Kwong is the Chairman and an Executive Director

of B-Tech (Holdings) Limited, which is a publicly listed company in Hong Kong.
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Sue Ka Lok, aged 37, joined the Group in January 2001 and is the Director of Finance and Secretary of the
Company. Mr. Sue graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia with a Bachelor of Economics degree
and holds a Master of Science in Finance degree from the City University of Hong Kong. He is a member of
various professional bodies including the Hong Kong Society of Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Sue had worked for an international accounting firm
and several listed companies in Hong Kong. He has over 13 years of experience in finance, accounting and

company secretarial practice.
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DIRECTORS REPORT

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended: 31st March,
2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company and provides corporate management services.
Details of the discontinued operations are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The activities of the Company’s remaining principal subsidiaries at 31st March, 2002 are set out'in note 49 to

the financial statements.
RESULTS
The resules of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 19.

No dividend was paid by the Company during the year. The directors do not recommend the payrﬁent of a final

dividend for the year.
RESERVES

Details of movements during the year in the reserves of the Group and the Company are set out'in note 37 to

the financial statements.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, dividends shall be payable our of the profits or other

reserves of the Company. The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders
I

comprise share premium, capital redemption reserve, contributed surplus, distriburable reserve and accumulated

losses which in aggregate amounted to HK$491,141,000 at 31st March, 2002.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set out

on page 76 of the annual report. |

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The investment properties of the Group were revalued at 31st March, 2002 by an independent firm 'of professional
property valuer on an open market value basis at HK$6,000,000. This valuation gives rise éo a deficit of
HK$1,680,000 which has been charged to the consolidated income statement. Details are set out1 in note 17 to
the financial statements.

|
|
|
!
|
|
|
'
|
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment of HK$27,707,000 for the purpose of

expanding the Group’s business.

The Group’s property, plant and equipment with an aggregate net book value of HK$44,538,000 was disposed

of as a result of disposal of subsidiaries.

Details of these and other movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment of the Group and

the Company are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.
PROPERTIES
Particulars of the properties of the Group at 31st March, 2002 are set out on pages 77 and 78.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Pursuant to a special resolution at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 27th February,
2001, the issued share capital of the Company was reduced from an amount of HK$86,559,000 1o HK$8,656,000
by canceling paid up share capital of the Company to the extent of HK80.09 on each of the ordinary share in
issue so that each issued ordinary share of HK$0.10 in the share capiral of the Company was treated as one fully
paid up ordinary share of HK$0.01 in the share capital of the Company (the “Capital Reduction”). The Capirtal

Reduction was approved and registered to the Cayman Islands’ Registrar of Companies on 19th April, 2001.

Pursuant to a share placement agreement entered into on 28th May, 2001, the Company issued 173,118,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.12 per share.

On 24ch August, 2001, the shareholders of the Company approved to issue, by way of rights issue, of
2,077,416,030 rights shares (the “Right Shares”) to the holders of the then existing ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each in the Company at a price of HK$0.10 for one Rights Share, on the basis of two Rights Shares for every

one then existing ordinary share of the Company.

The rights attached to the warrants of the Company to subscribe for ordinary shares expired on 3rd May, 2001

and all the outstanding warrants were lapsed accordingly.

Dertails of these and other movements during the year in the share capital and warrants of the Company are set

out in notes 34 and 36 to the financial statements, respectively.

i1

HANSOM EASTERN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT




HANSOM EASTERN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT

12

DIRECTORS® REPORT (ot

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) of the Company adopted on 2nd July, 1999 for the
primary purpose of providing incentive to directors and eligible employees, the Company may grajnt options at
HKS$1 for each lot of share options granted under the Scheme to any full time employees, including executive

directors, of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company.

Options granted are exercisable for a period to be notified by the board of directors of the Company to each
grantee and in any event such period of time shall not exceed a period of ten years commencing on which the
option is accepted and shall expire at the end of such ten year period. The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company ' from time to

time.

The subscription price of the options shall be a price to be determined by the directors of the Company being
not less than the nominal value of the ordinary shares of the Company or 80% of the average closing price of
the ordinary shares of the Company for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of the

options.

There were no options granted to or exercised by the directors of the Company during the year or outstanding
at 31st March, 2002. !

Details of movements during the year in the share options granted under the Scheme are set outin note 35 rto

the financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive directors:

Kwong Wai Tim, William (Managing Director)

Yau Shum Tek, Cindy

Lai Ming Wai

Terrence Lai

Wang Chun Lin

Chen Peihua (appointed on 20th June, 2002)
Zhang Ming Yu {resigned on 23rd January, 2002)

Independent non-executive directors:

Lam Ping Cheung :
Kwong Kai Sing, Benny ‘:
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In accordance with Article 95 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Chen Peihua shall hold office until

the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Lai Ming Wai, Mr. Wang Chun
Lin and Mr. Lam Ping Cheung will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with Article 95 and

Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

None of the direcrors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st March, 2002, the interests of the directors of the Company and their associates in the securities of the
Company and its associated corporations, within the meaning of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance
(“SDI Ordinance”), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 29 of the SDI
Ordinance or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies in

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:
Name of director Nature of interests Number of ordinary shares held
Yau Shum Tek, Cindy Corporate 726,918,000 (Note below)

Note: As at 31sc March, 2002, Multiple Wealth International Limited and Pacific Rim Investment Management Enterprises
Limited held 192,318,000 ordinary shares and 534,600,000 ordinary shares of the Company, respectively. Multiple
Wealth International Limited and Pacific Rim Investment Management Enterprises Limited are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Hastings Gold Limited, which in turn, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mainland Talent Developments
Limited. Ms. Yau Shum Tek, Cindy wholly owns and controls Red China Holdings Limited and Red China
Holdings Limited is interested in 50% of the issued share capital of Mainland Talent Developments Limited.
Ms. Yau Shum Tek, Cindy is deemed to be interested in 726,918,000 ordinary shares of the Company held by

Multiple Wealth International Limited and Pacific Rim Investment Management Enterprises Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March, 2002, none of the directors or their associates had any interests in the

securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations within the meaning of the SDI Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share option scheme” above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the: Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the
Company or any ather body corporate, and none of the directors, or their spouses or children under the age of
cighteen, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such!rights during
the year. ‘

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS !
As at 31st March, 2002, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
16(1) of the SDI Ordinance disclosed the following entities as having an interest of 10% or more of the issued

share capital of the Company:

Nature Number of !

Name of shareholder of interests ordinary shares held ! Note

Direct interest Deemed interest

Multiple Wealth International Limited Corporate 192,318,000 1— 1
Pacific Rim Investment Management f
Enterprises Limited Corporate 534,600,000 “— 1
Hastings Gold Limited Corporate - 726,918,00¢ 1
Mainland Talent Developments Limited Corporate - 726,918,00b 1,2 and 3
Rymer Group Limited Corporate - 726,918,006 1 and 2
Red China Holdings Limirted Corporate - 726,918,00b 1 and 3
Lo Ki Yan, Karen Corporate - 726,918,000 land 2
Yau Shum Tek, Cindy Corporate - 726,918,000 1and 3
|
Notes: §
|
1. As at 31st March, 2002, Multiple Wealth International Limited and Pacific Rim Investment Managefnent Enterprises

Limited held 192,318,000 ordinary shares and 534,600,000 ordinary shares of the Company, respectively. Multiple
Wealth International Limited and Pacific Rim Investment Management Enterprises Limited are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Hastings Gold Limited, which in turn, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mainland Talent Developments
Limited. |
|
2. Ms. Lo Ki Yan, Karen wholly owns and controls Rymer Group Limited and Rymer Group Limited is interested in
50% of the issued share capital of Mainland Talent Developments Limited. Ms. Lo Ki Yan, Kareniis deemed to be
interested in 726,918,000 ordinary shares of the Company held by Multiple Wealch Intcrnatlonal Limited and
Pacific Rim Investment Management Enterprises Limired. ‘J
3. Ms. Yau Shum Tek, Cindy wholly owns and controls Red China Holdings Limited and Red China Holdings
Limited is interested in 50% of the issued share capital of Mainland Talent Developments Limited. Ms. Yau Shum
Tek, Cindy is deemed to be interested in 726,918,000 ordinary shares of the Company held by Multlple Wealth
International Limited and Pacific Rim Investment Management Enterprises Limited. ’
Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other interests representing 10% or more of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31st March, 2002. . i

|
|
|
I
|
I
i
i
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

On 17th September, 2001, the Company exercised the put option granted by See Ying Limited (“See Ying”)
pursuant to a share sale and purchase agreement dated 10th November, 2000 made between the Company and
See Ying (the “Put Option”). The exercise of the Put Option required See Ying to purchase the Company’s
remaining 51% equity interest in Tung Fong Hung Investment Limited ("TFHI”) ac a consideration of
HK$45,900,000. See Ying was on the date of exercise of the Put Option a substantial shareholder of TFHI
holding 49% equity interest in TFHI and the exercise of the Put Option constituted a connected transaction for
the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. A circular conrtaining derails of the transaction was
despatched to the shareholders of the Company on 8th October, 2001. The exercise of the Put Option was
approved by the shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 30th
October, 2001 and the disposal of the 51% equity interest in TFHI to See Ying was completed on 2nd
November, 2001.

On 19th December, 2000, the Group granted an unsecured loan facility (the “Loan Facility”) to the extent of
HK$15,000,000 (the “Loan”) to TFHI for a term of nine months. TFHI was at the time of granting the Loan
Facility a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and since 15th January, 2001 became a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company in which no connected person is a substantial shareholder (excluding a person who is
connected person by virtue only of its substantial shareholding in TFHI). The purpose of the Loan Facility was
to provide working capital to TFHI and it bore interest at prevailing markert rate. The outstanding balance of
the Loan of HK$14,711,000 was assigned to an independent third party on 17th July, 2001. Interest income
received for the year amounting to HK$381,000. The granting of the Loan Facility constituted a connected
rransaction not subject to any disclosure or shareholder approval requirement under Rule 14.24(3) of the Listing
Rules at the time it was granted and a connected transaction under Rule 14.25(2)(a) of the Listing Rules for the
period from 15th January, 2001 to 17ch July, 2001 which is only subject to disclosure requirements in the

annual report.

On 13th November, 2001, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into an agreement with Ms. Yau
Shum Tek, Cindy and Mr. Wang Chun Lin, both are executive directors of the Company, to acquire the entire
issued share capital of Joinwell (Shum Chun) Company Limited (“Joinwell”) for a total consideration of
HK$630,000. The sole asset of Joinwell is a motor vehicle. Ms. Yau Shum Tek, Cindy and Mr. Wang Chun Lin
beneficially owned Joinwell as to 43.33% and 56.67%, respectively, immediately before the completion of the

transaction which took place on 11th December, 2001.

Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS 1

The aggregate sales and purchases during the year atcributable to the Group’s five largest customersj and suppliers

were less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover and purchases, respectively.
PENSION SCHEMES

As at 31st March, 2002, the Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fuhd retirement
benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance forj all employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income statement as they become payable in accordance with che
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently-administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions are contributed into theiMPF Scheme

in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. i

The employer’s pension costs charged to the income statement for the year are set out in note 9 to the financial
I

statements. !

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Coxﬁpany’s listed

securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS }

There are no provisions for pre-emprtive rights under the Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of the

Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31st March, 2002 with the Code of Best Practice as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. ‘

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of significant post balance sheet events are set out in note 47 to the financial statements.
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AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

as auditors of the Company.
On behalf of the Board

Kwong Wai Tim, William
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 18th July, 2002

17

ANNUAL REPORT \ \ HANSOM EASTERN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED




AUDITORS’ REPORT

HANSOM EASTERN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT

i8

= = P
G =
iETA%jJ * E‘Sﬂ =51 B%E =] a-!- Bm 17
Certified Public Accountants EBDRTHEPI11HR ‘
26/F, Wing On Centre RZ2DIM268

L‘Ic’1n§c:<r10r:‘agught Road Central Deloﬁtte
Touche
Tohmatsu

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HANSOM EASTERN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liabiliry)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 19 to 75 which have been prepared in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of financial stacements which give 2 true and fair
view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

|
It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and to report

our opinion to you. |
f
Basis of Opinion

|
We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the :amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accountiﬁg policies are

appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy
of the presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. ‘
Opinion

\
In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group as at 31st March, 2002 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have

been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companiles Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18th July, 2002




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

Notes

Turnover 5&6
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other operating income 7
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses 8
Loss from operations 9
Finance costs 11
Investment income 12
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations 13
Loss on assignment of loan to a subsidiary
Net gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries
Gain on tansfer of certain property interests to a

jointly controlled entity
Gain on disposal of interest in a jointly controlled entity
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill

arising from the acquisition of an associate 3
Share of results of a jointly controlled entity
Loss before taxation
Taxation 14
Loss before minority interests
Minority interests
Net loss for the year
Dividend 15
Loss per share 16

2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$000
(As restated)

240,683 322,476
(167,840) (222,849)
72,843 99,627
592 7,505
(60,325) (133,349)
(33,255) (63,742)
(52,694) (39,604)
(72,839) (129,563)
(2,122) (2,936)
653 8,183
(4,711) -

- 53,573

- 10,696

- 10,674
- (48,674)
- (209}
(54,494) (98,256)
(190) (47)
(54,684) (98,303)
(7,009) (14,156)
(47,675) (84,147)
HK$(0.02) HK$(0.11)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At 31st March, 2002

2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
(As restated)

Non-current assets
Investment properties 6,000 7,680
Property, plant and equipment 1,914 ‘ 23,564
Interest in an associate - 1,763
Investments in securities 58,000

Notes receivable - ‘ 2,000

65,914 ‘ 35,007

Current assets
Properties held for resale 30,000 49,600
Inventories - 57,084
Trade and other receivables 5,336 36,005
Short-term loans 173,543 4,014
Deposits made on investments 134,244 160,258
Investments in securities - 13,466
Notes receivable 55,000 53,000
Tax recoverable - 149
Bank balances and cash 42,404 37,306

440,527 " 410,882

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 29 2,242 ‘ 43,580
Taxation 83 -
Bank and other borrowings 30 - 36,765
Obligations under finance leases—amount due within one year 31 - 31

2,325 80,376
Net current assets 438,202 330,506
Tortal assets less current liabilities 504,116 365,513

Non-current liabilities

20
The financial statements on pages 19 to 75 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
18¢h July, 2002 and are signed on its behalf by:

Kwong Wai Tim, William Yau Shum Tek, Cindy
Director Director

g Deferred taxation 33 - 102
5 Obligations under finance leases—amount due after one year 31 - 146
=

@ - 248
Z

g Minority interests - 31,465
E 504,116 - 333,800
g

52 Capital and reserves

S Share capital 34 31,161 86,559
% Reserves 37 472,955 : 247,241
[72]
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BALANCE SHEET

At 31st March, 2002

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Loan to a subsidiary

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Bank and other borrowings

Net current assets

Tortal assets less current liabilities

Non-current liability

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Capital and reserves
Share capital

Reserves

Kwong Wai Tim, William

Director

2002 2001

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
18 262 319
19 520,304 391,172
520,566 391,491

148 291

28 - 14,339
2,060 4,644

2,208 19,274

472 9,445

30 - 4,694
472 14,139

1,736 5,135

522,302 396,626

32 - 107
522,302 396,519

34 31,161 86,559
37 491,141 309,960
522,302 396,519

Yau Shum Tek, Cindy

Director

21

ANNUAL REPORT I l HANSOM EASTERN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED




ANNUAL REPORT ‘ ‘ HANSOM EASTERN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

22

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

2002 2001
HK$’000 HKS$°000

(As restated)

Exchange differences arising on translation of overseas operations

not recognised in the consolidated income statement (226) 1,822
Net loss for the year (47,675) (84,147)
Total recognised losses (47,901) (82,325)




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31sc March, 2002

Notes

NET CASH (OUTFLOW) INFLOW FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 38

RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND
SERVICING OF FINANCE

Interest paid on bank and other borrowings

Interest paid on obligations under finance leases

Dividends paid to minority shareholders

Bank and other interest income received

Dividend income received

NET CASH (OUTFLOW) INFLOW FROM
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND
SERVICING OF FINANCE

TAXATION
Overseas tax (paid) refunded
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded

NET CASH (OUTFLOW) INFLOW FROM
TAXATION

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of investment securities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Deposits made on acquisition of investments
Acquisition of a subsidiary 39
Amount advanced to an associate
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash and
cash equivalents disposed of) 40
Proceed on assignment of loan to a subsidiary
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of notes receivable
Acquisition of interest in an associate
Payment to a third party to settle a dispute in respect
of a property project—net
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties
and properties under development
Proceeds from disposal of a jointly controlled entity
Amounts repaid by associates
Amounts repaid from notes receivable
Proceeds from disposal of investments securities and
club debenture

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

NET CASH OUTFLOW BEFORE FINANCING

2002 2001
HK$°000 HKS$’000
(173,390) 43,180
(2,107) (3,547)
(15) (26)

(24) (153)

653 8,107

- 76
(1,493) 4,457
(107) 12

- 1,518

(107) 1,530
(45,000) —
(27,707) (21,771)
(23,986) (160,258)
(630) -
(17) (2,326)
40,403 (4)
10,000 -
540 2,773

- (55,000)

- (48,674)

- (5,000)

- 47,565

- 37,218

- 34,046

- 7,951

- 7,695
(46,397) (155,785)
(221,387) (106,618)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

2002 2001
HKS$°000 - HK$°000

FINANCING
Issue of shares, net of expenses 221,863 21,513
Borrowings raised 28,440 35,601
Repayment of borrowings (33) (37,607)
Proceeds from partial disposal of a subsidiary to

minority shareholders 44,050

Redemption of convertible notes (70,000)
Repurchase of shares ‘ (539)

NET CASH INFLOW (OUTFLOW) FROM
FINANCING 250,270 {6,982)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (113,600)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT
FORWARD 13,541 127,567

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES
CHANGE (20) (426)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED
FORWARD 42 42,404 13,541
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. The

shares of the Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™).
The Company is an investment holding company and provides corporate management services.

The activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st March, 2002 are set out in note 49.
ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

In the current year, the Group adopted, for the first time, a number of new and revised Statements of
Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP(s)”) issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. Adoption of
these SSAPs has led to a number of changes in the Group’s accounting policies. These revised and new
accounting policies are set out in note 4. In addition, these new and revised SSAPs have introduced
additional and revised disclosure requirements which have been adopted in these financial statements.
Comparative amounts and disclosure for the prior year have been restated in order to achieve a consistent

presentation.

The adoption of these new and revised SSAPs has resulted in the following changes to the Group’s
accounting policies that have affected the amounts and disclosure reported for the current or prior

periods.
Segment reporting

In the current year, the Group has changed the basis of identification of reportable segments to that
required by SSAP 26 “Segment reporting”. Segment disclosures for the year ended 31st March, 2001 have

been amended so that they are presented on a consistent basis.
Leases

SSAP 14 (Revised) “Leases” has introduced some amendments to the basis of accounting for finance and
operating leases, and some additional and revised disclosure requirements specified for the Group’s
leasing arrangements. These changes have not had any material effect on the results for the current or
prior accounting periods and accordingly, no prior year adjustment had been required. Disclosures for all
of the Group’s leasing arrangements have been modified so as to comply with the requirements of the
revised standard. Comparative amounts and disclosure have been restated in order to achieve a consistent

presentation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS coniniet)

For the year ended 3151; March, 2002

2.  ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (continved)

Goodwill

In the current year, the Group adopted SSAP 30 “Business combinations” and has elected nort to restate
goodwill or negative goodwill previously eliminated against or credited to reserves. Accordingly, goodwill
arising on acquisitions prior to 1st April, 2001 is held in reserves and will be charged to the income
statement at the tme of disposal of the relevant subsidiary or associate, or at such time as the goodwill is
derermined to be impaired. Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1st April, 2001 will be

credited to the income statement at the time of disposal of the relevant subsidiary or associate.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1sc April, 2001 is capitalised and amortised over its estimated
useful life on a straight line basis. Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1st April, 2001 is
presented as 2 deduction from assets and will be released to the income statement based on an analysis of

the circumstances from which the balance resulted.
3. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT

During the year, the directors of the Company have reviewed and examined the operations of the
subsidiaries and an associate and their profitability potential and are of the opinion that the carrying
amount of goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate during the year ended 31st March, 2001
that had previously been eliminated to reserves is not recoverable. In accordance with Interpretation 13
“Goodwill-continuing requirements for goodwill and negative goodwill previously eliminated against/
credited to reserves”, the Group has restated and increased its previously reported net loss‘ for the year
ended 31st March, 2001 and accumulated losses as at 31st March, 2001 by HK$48,674,000 for the
impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill arising from the acquisition of the associate during the

year ended 31st March, 2001.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (rinuca

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified for the

valuation of investment properties and certain investments in securities.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in Hong Kong. The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and ics

subsidiaries made up to 31st March each year.

The results of subsidiaries and associates acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of

disposal, as appropriate.
All significant inter-company transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary or an associate at the date

of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1st April, 2001 continues to be held in reserves, and will be
charged to the income statement at the time of disposal of the relevant subsidiary or associate, or at such

time as the goodwill is determined to be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions after Ist April, 2001 is capitalised and amortised on a straight line basis
over its useful economic life. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is included within the
carrying amount of the associate. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary is presented separately

in the balance sheer.

On disposal of a subsidiary or an associate, the attributable amount of unamortised goodwill or goodwill

previously eliminated against is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the vear ended 31st March, 2002

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (eontinuedy

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets

and liabilities of a subsidiary or an associate at the date of acquisition over the cost of acquisition.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1st April, 2001 continues to be held in reserves, and

will be credited to the income statement at the time of disposal of the relevant subsidiary or associate.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary after 1st April, 2001 is presented as deduction
from assets and will be released to the income statement based on an analysis of the circumstances from
which the balance resulted. Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary is presented

separately in the balance sheet as a deduction from assets.

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is deducted from the carrying value of that

associate.

To the extent that the negative goodwill is attributable to losses or expenses anticipated at the date of
acquisition, it is released to the income statement in the period in which those losses or expenses arise.
The remaining negative goodwill is recognised as income on 2 straight line basis over the remaining
average useful life of the identifiable acquired depreciable assets. To the extent that such negative goodwill
exceeds the aggregate fair value of the acquired identifiable non-monetary assets, it is recognised in

income immediately.
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less any identified

impairment losses.
Interests in associates
The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition results of its

associates for the year. In the consolidated balance sheert, interests in associates are stated at the Group’s

share of the net assets of the associates less any idenrified impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (oninict

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which are held for their investment potential, any rental

income being negotiated at arm’s length.

Investment properties are stated at their open market value based on independent professional valuation
at the balance sheet date. Any revaluation increase or decrease arising on the revaluation of investment
properties is credited or charged to the investment property revaluation reserve unless the balance on this
reserve is insufficient to cover a revaluation decrease on a portfolic basis, in which case the excess of the
revaluation decrease over the balance on the investment property revaluation reserve is charged to the
income statement. Where a decrease has previously been charged to the income statement and a revaluation
increase subsequently arises, this increase is credited to the income statement to the extent of the decrease

previously charged.

On disposal of an investment property, the balance on the investment property revaluation reserve

attributable to that property is transferred to the income statement.

No depreciation is provided on investment properties except where the unexpired term of the relevant

lease is twenty years or less.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and amortisation and accumulated

impairment losses.

The cost of land use rights is amortised over the terms of the relevant rights using the straight line

method.
The cost of buildings is amortised over a period of twenty years using the straight line method.

The cost of fixtures is depreciated at 15% per annum using the straight line method or over the terms of

the relevant lease, whichever is shorter.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS woninues)

For the year ended 315(7March, 2002

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (consinued)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of other assets over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account their estimated residual value, using the straight line method, art the following

rates per annum:

Computer equipment 33'/3%
Others 15%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives, on the same basis as assets

owned by the Group or, where shorter, over the terms of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference berween

the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.
Properties held for resale

Properties held for resale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost consists of all
expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition and development of the properties plus other direct
costs attributable to such properties.

Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognised on a trade date basis and are initially measured at cost.

Investments other than held-to-marurity debt securities are classified as investment securities and other

investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an identified long-term strategic purpose, are measured

at subsequent reporting dates at cost, as reduced by any impairment loss that is other than temporary.

Other investments are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses included in net profit or

loss for the year.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted

average method.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS coniniea)

For the year ended 315t March, 2002

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (eontinued)
Leased assets

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets concerned to the Group. Assets held under finance leases are capirtalised
at their fair values at the date of acquisition. The corresponding liability to the lessor, net of finance
charges, is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Finance costs, which represent the
difference between the total leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to
the income statement over the period of the relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of

charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

All other leases are classified as operating leases and the annual rental income and expenses are credited
and charged, respectively, to the income statement on a straight line basis over the terms of the relevant
lease.

Revenue recognition

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

For properties which are held for resale, revenue is recognised on the execution of a binding sales

agreement.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest

rate applicable.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance, from properties let under operating leases is recognised

on a straight line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.
Sales of investment in securities are recognised on a trade date basis.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have

been established.

Revenue from advertising is recognised rateably in the period in which the advertisement is displayed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cnines

For the year ended 315t March, 2002

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conzinued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are capiralised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when

the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary

investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.
Impairment

At each balance sheer date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its

recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediarely.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined as no impairment loss had been recognised for the

asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
Retirement benefits schemes

The retirement benefit costs charged in the income statement represent the contributions payable in

respect of the year to the Group’s defined contribution scheme and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

(“MPF").
Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
rates ruling on the dates of the transactions or at the contracted settlement rate, if appropriate. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are re-translated at the
rates ruling on the balance sheet date. Profits and losses arising on exchange are dealt with in the income
statement.
32

On consolidation, the financial statements of operations which are denominated in currencies other than
Hong Kong dollars are translated at the rates ruling on the balance sheet date. All exchange differences

arising on translation are dealt with in reserves.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS coniinue)

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (consinued)
Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are non-assessable
or disallowed. Timing differences arise from the recognition for tax purposes of certain items of income
and expense in a different accounting period from that in which they are recognised in the financial
statements. The tax effect of the resulting timing differences, computed using the liability mechod, is
recognised as deferred taxation in the financial statements to the extent that it is probable that a liability

or an asset will crystallise in the foreseeable future.
TURNOVER

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable from sales of goods, sales of securities, sales
of properties, interest income from provision of finance and note receivables, property rentals and

advertising income during the year, and is analysed as follows:

2002 2001
HKS$ 000 HK$’000
Continuing operations

Sales of securities 66,259 12,139
Sale of properties 9,600 -
Interest income from provision of finance and note receivables 11,650 7,498
Property rentals 2,119 2,123
Advertising income : - 710
Discontinued operations 89,628 22,470

Sales of Western and Chinese pharmaceurical and
health products and foodstuffs (note 13) 151,055 300,006
240,683 322,476

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT INFORMATION
During the year, the Group was organised into five main operating segments: manufacture and sale of
Western and Chinese pharmaceutical and health products and foodstuffs, provision of finance, trading

and investment in securities, property holding and investment and investment holding.

As explained in note 13, the Group ceased its manufacture and sale of Western and Chinese pharmaceutical

and health products and foodstuffs operations during the year.

These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS coninets

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT INFORMATION (ontinued)

Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

Business segments

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

Manufacture and

sale of Western

and Chinese Trading Property
pharmaceutical Provision and holding
and health products of  investment and  Investment

and foodstuffs finance  in securities  investment activities* Consolidated

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

SEGMENT REVENUE 151,055 6,533 66,259 11,719 5,117 240,683

SEGMENT RESULTS (12,418) 5,869 {9,504) (11,105) (34,272) (61,430)

Unallocated corporate expenses (11,409)

Loss from operations (72,839)

Finance costs (2,122)

Investment income 653

Gain on disposal of

discontinued operations 24,525
Loss on assignment of loan to

a subsidiary (4,711)

Loss before taxation (54,494)

Taxation (190)

Loss before minority interests (54,684)

Minority interests (7,009)

Net loss for the year (47,675)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (oriinues)

For the vear ended 31st March, 2002

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT INFORMATION (concinued)

Business segments (continued)

At 31st March, 2002

Manufacture and

sale of Western

and Chinese Trading Property
pharmaceutical Provision and holding
and health products of  investment and  Investment
and foodstuffs finance  in securities  investment activities* Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

ASSETS
Segment assets 87,909 212,644 2,125 64,125 77,624 444,427
Investments in securities - - - - 58,000 58,000
Unallocated corporate assets 4,014
Consolidared toral assets 50,
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities - (68) (5) (1,623) (22) (1,718)
Unallocated corporate liabilities (607)
o
For the year ended 31st March, 2002
Manufacture and
sale of Western
and Chinese Trading Property
pharmaceutical Provision and holding
and health products of  investment and  Investment
and foodstuffs finance  in securities investment activities* Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

OTHER INFORMATION
Capital additions 26,843 - - 735
Depreciation and amortisation 3,999 - - 91

Impairment loss recognised

in respect of properties

held for resale - - - 10,000
Impairment loss recognised in

respect of investment securities - - - -

Deficir arising on valuation

1,680

of investment properties - -

129 27,707
629 4,719

- 10,000
37,000 37,000
- 1,680
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS coninsea

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT INFORMATION (consinued)

Business segments (continued)

For the year ended 31sc March, 2001

Manufacture and

sale of Western

and Chinese Trading Property
pharmaceutical Provision and holding
and health products of  investment and  Investment
and foodstuffs finance  in securities  investment activities™ Consolidated

HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000

SEGMENT REVENUE 300,006 4,830 12,139 2,123 3,378 322,476
SEGMENT RESULTS (61,634) 20,695 (16,905) (43,831) (11,072) (112,747)
Unallocated corporate expenses (16,816)
Loss from operations (129,563)
Finance costs (2,936)
[nvestment income 8,183

Net gain on disposal of interests

in subsidiaries 53,573
Gain on transfer of certain

property interests to a jointly

controlled entity 10,696
Gain on disposal of interest

in a jointly controlled entity 10,674
Impairment loss recognised

in respect of goodwill arising from

the acquisition of an associate (48,674)

Share of results of a jointly

controlled entity (209)
Loss before taxation {98,256)
Taxation (47)
Loss before minority interests (98,303)
Minority interests (14,156)
Net loss for the year (84,147)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (oniniet

For the vear ended 31st March, 2002

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT INFORMATION consinued)

Business segments (continued)

ASSETS
Segment assets

Interest in an associate

At 31st March, 2001

Manufacture and

sale of Western

pharmaceutical
and health products

activities* Consolidated

Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS consinuea

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

6.

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT INFORMATION r(onsinued)

Business segments (continued)

For the year ended 31sc March, 2001

Manufacture and
sale of Western

and Chinese
pharmaceutical

and health products
and foodstuffs

HK$000
OTHER INFORMATION
Capital additions 20,028
Depreciation and amortisation 12,285

Impairment losses recognised

in respect of properties

held for resale -
Deficit arising on valuation

of investment properties -
Impairment loss recognised in

respect of goodwill arising

from the acquisition

of an associate -

Provision
of
finance

HK$'000

Trading
and
investment

in securities

HK$000

Property
holding
and

investment

HK$'000

27

40,900

180

Investment
activities® Consolidared
HK$'000 HKS$000

1,937 21,992
194 12,480

- 40,900

- 180
48,674 48,674

*

business, investment securities and note receivables.

These activities comprise mainly of investment in internet operations, investment in application software




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (oninuea

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

6.  BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical segments

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China, other than
Hong Kong (the “PRC”).

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s sales by geographical market, irrespective of the

origin of the goods and services:

Sales revenue by Loss from
geographical market operations
2002 2001 2002 2001

HKS$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000

Hong Kong 202,555 246,336 (58,649) (109,117)
The PRC 21,995 40,024 (12,756) (4,144)
Asia Pacific

{excluding Hong Kong and the PRC) 5,538 18,383 (1,334) (16,455)
Others 10,595 17,733 (1090) 153

240,683 322,476 (72,839)  (129,563)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets, and additions to property, plant

and equipment, analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying
amount of Additions to property,
segment assets plant and equipment
2002 2001 2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000  HKS$'000

Hong Kong 442,908 354,272 20,119 17,373
The PRC 63,533 77,411 7,251 3,765
Asia Pacific

{excluding Hong Kong and the PRC) - 6,370 321 454

Others - 7,836 16 400

506,441 445,889 27,707 21,992
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS it

For the vear ended 31st March, 2002

7. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Included in other operating income are:

Unrealised gain on other investments

Gain on disposal of investment properties

8. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Included in other operating expenses are:

Impairment loss recognised in respect of investment securities
Impairment losses recognised in respect of properties held
for resale
Cost for closure of rerail outlets
(Allowances for) write back of allowances for amounts
due from associates — net
Deficit arising on valuation of investment properties
Write back provision for litigation
Forteiture of deposit made on acquisition of a property
Loss on disposal of listed investment securities
Allowances for bad and doubtful debts
Loss on disposal of properties under development
Write back of allowances for loan debrtors
Write back of allowances for guarantees given in connection with

a disposed subsidiary

2002 2001
HKS$ 000 HK$'000
- 4,266

- 975

2002 2001
HK$ 000 HK$’000
(37,000) -
(10,000) (40,900)
(6,184) (8,643)
(1,780) 1,483
(1,680) (180)
4,325 -

- (4,149)

- (4,010)

- (422)

- (47)

- 16,000

- 1,776




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS et

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

9.  LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000

Loss from operations has been arrived at after charging:

Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments (note 10(a)):
Salaries and allowances 42,453 87,858
Retirement benefits scheme and MPF contributions,
net of forfeited contributions of HK$377,000
(2001: HK$254,000) 1,877 2,522

44,330 90,380

Auditors’ remuneration:

Current year 868 1,048
Underprovision in a prior year 277 320
1,145 1,368

Depreciation and amortisation:

Assets owned by the Group 4,691 12,426
Assets held under finance leases 28 54
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 160 8,684
Loss on disposal of properties held for resale 114 -

and after crediting:

Property rental income, net of outgoings of HK$741,000

(2001: HK$1,075,000) 1,378 1,048

41

ANNTUIAT REPORT || HANSOM FASTERN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED




ANNUAL REPORT I ‘ HANSOM EASTERN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

42

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS coninuet

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

10. EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Particulars of the emoluments of the directors and the five highest paid individuals are as follows:

(a) Directors’ emoluments
2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$000
Fees:
Executive directors - -
Independent non-executive directors 240 258
240 258
Other emoluments:
Executive directors
Salaries and other benefits 5,070 3,986
Retirement benefits scheme and MPF contributions 189 169
Inducement to join the Group - 450
Independent non-executive directors - -
5,259 4,605
5,499 4,863

The emoluments of the directors are within the following bands:

Number of directors

2002 2001
Nil to HK$1,000,000 5 ‘ 14
HK$1,000,001 o HK$1,500,000 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 1




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (oniniea

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

10. EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coninucd)

(b)

Emoluments of the five highest paid individuals

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year included four
directors (2001: chree direccors) of the Company, whose emolumencs are included in note 10(a)

above. The aggregate emoluments of the remaining individual (2001: two individuals) are as

follows:
2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000
Salaries and other benefits 798 1,510
Retirement benefits scheme and MPF conrtributions 23 79
821 1,589

The emoluments of the above employees are within the following bands:

Number of employees

2002 2001
Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 - 1

Save as disclosed above, during the years ended 31st March, 2002 and 2001, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals, including directors, as an inducement to

join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

In addition, during the years ended 31st March, 2002 and 2001, no directors waived any

emoluments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (oninues

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

11.

12.

13.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest payable on:
Bank and other borrowings wholly repayable within five years
Obligations under finance leases
Convertible notes

Bank and other borrowings not wholly repayable within five years

Total borrowing costs

Less: Amount capitalised in respect of properties under development

INVESTMENT INCOME

Included in investment income are:

Interest income from:
Banks
Orthers

Dividend income from listed investments

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

2002 2001
HKS$’000 HK$'000
2,107 1,320

15 26

- 1,299

- 928

2,122 3,573

- (637)

2,122 2,936
2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000
645 4,197

8 3,910

- 76

During the year, the Company disposed of the remaining 51% equity interest in Tung Fong Hung
Investment Limited (“TFHI”) at a consideration of HK$45,900,000. TFHI is a former intermediate

holding company of the Company’s subsidiaries which are principally engaged in the business of

manufacture and sale of Western and Chinese pharmaceutical and health products and foodstuffs. The

transaction was completed on 2nd November, 2001.

In addition, as explained in note 27 (a), the Group entered into two termination agreements with two

third parties to terminate the acquisition of a subsidiary in the PRC which is principally engaged in the

manufacture, process, sale and export of traditional Chinese Medicine in the PRC. As a result, the

directors of the Company decided to cease the business of manufacture and sale of Western and Chinese

pharmaceutical and health products and foodstuffs.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (oninea

Far the year ended 31st March, 2002

13.

14.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (oninued)

The profit on disposal of TFHI amounted to HK$24,525,000, representing the difference between the
proceeds of the sale and the carrying amount of the net assets of TFHI together with the actributable
translation reserve and negative goodwill which have previously been eliminated against reserves and has

not previously been charged or credited to the income statement.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities and the cash effects of the disposal of TFHI are set out

in note 40.

The consolidated resules of TFHI and its subsidiaries for the period up to 2nd November, 2001, the date

of discontinuance, which have been included in the consolidated income statement of the Group, were as

follows:
1.4.2001 1.4.2000
to to
2.11.2001 31.3.2001
HK$’000 HK$’000
Turnover 151,055 300,006
Loss from operations (12,418) (61,634)
TAXATION
2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$000
The income tax expense comprises:
Taxation of the Company and its subsidiaries
Hong Kong Profits Tax - 27
QOverseas taxation 210 -
210 27
Deferred taxation (note 33) (20) 20
190 47
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

14.

15.

16.

TAXATICN (continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the year ended 31st March, 2002 as neither

the Company nor its subsidiaries had any assessable profit for the year.

Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31st March, 2001 calculated ac the rate of 16% on the

estimated assessable profit of that year.

Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 33.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was proposed or paid by the Company during the year (2001: nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the loss per share for the year is based on the net loss for the year of HK$47,675,000
(2001: HK$84,147,000, as restated) and on the weighted average number of 2,197,101,754 (2001:
787,944,808, as adjusted) ordinary shares in issue adjusted for the effect of a change in accounting policy

(note 3) and of the Company’s Rights Issue as described in note 34(b)(iii).

The adjustment to comparative loss per share is as follows:

HKS$
Reconciliation of 2001 loss per share:
Reported figure before adjustment 0.05
Adjustment arising from the change in accounting policy in respect
of the impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill arising
from the acquisition of an associate and the Company’s Rights Issue 0.06
Restated 0.11

No diluted loss per share is presented for che years ended 31st March, 2002 and 2001 as the exercise and
conversion of the share options and warrants would result in a decrease in the loss per share for both

years.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS i

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

THE GROU?P
HK$°000

VALUATION
At 1st April, 2001 7,680
Deficit arising on valuation of investment properties (1,680)
At 31st March, 2002 6,000

The Group’s investment properties, which are rented out or to be rented out under operating leases, are

held under long-term land use rights in the PRC.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at 31st March, 2002 by RHL Appraisal Ltd., an
independent firm of professional property valuer, on an open market value basis at HK$6,000,000. The

deficit arising on revaluation of HK$1,680,000 was charged to the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS cusines

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The
The Group Company
Furniture,
Land and fixtures and ~ Computer Motor Motor
buildings ~ equipment  equipment vehicles Total vehicles
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
COST
At Ist April, 2001 2,880 46,346 8,984 3,097 61,307 365
Currency realignment - (14) (41) (3) (58} -
Acquisition of a subsidiary - - - 630 630 -
Other additions - 27,313 234 160 27,707 69
Disposal of subsidiaries (2,880) (69,976) (7,756) (2,640) (83,252) -
Other disposals - {2,339) (986) (181) (3,500) -
At 31st March, 2002 - 1,330 435 1,063 2,828 434
DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTISATION
At Ist April, 2001 140 31,331 4,917 1,355 37,743 46
Currency realignment - (5) (22) (0 (28) -
Provided for the year 95 2,905 1,305 414 4,719 126
Disposal of subsidiaries (235) (31,775) (5,316) (1,388) (38,714) -
Eliminated on other disposals - (1,960} (716) {130) (2,806} -
At 31st March, 2002 - 496 168 250 914 172
NET BOOK VALUES
At 315t March, 2002 - 834 267 813 1,914 262
At 31st March, 2001 2,740 15,015 4,067 1,742 23,564 319

At 31st March, 2001, the Group’s land and buildings were held under medium-term land use rights in

the PRC.

At 31st March, 2001, the net book value of property, plant and equipment includes an amount of

HK$231,000 in respect of assets held under finance leases.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS couinea

For the vear ended 31st March, 2002

19.

20.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$ 000

Unlisted shares, at cost - 45,900
Amounts due from subsidiaries, less allowances 520,304 345,272
520,304 391,172

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment. Ourt of the
balance as at 31st March, 2002, an amount of HK$337,850,000 (2001: HK$99,949,000) bears interest
at prevailing market rate and the remaining balance is interest-free. In the opinion of the directors, the
amounts will not be repayable within twelve months from the balance sheet date and are therefore shown

as non-current.

None of the subsidiaries had any debr securities outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st March, 2002 are set out in note 49.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

THE GROUP
2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$°000
Share of net assets - -
Amount due from the associate, less allowances - 1,763
- 1,763
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS couinie

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continueds

Details of the Group’s associate at 31st March, 2002, which is held indirectly by the Company, are as

follows:
Place of Attributable
Name of associate incorporation equity interest Principal activities
%
Triple Chain Limited British Virgin 50 Investment in companies engaged
Islands in the development, marketing

and distribution of application

software
21. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
THE GROUP
2002 2001
HK$000 HK$°000
Non-current investments:
Investment securities, at cost
Overseas unlisted shares (note below) 95,000 5,967
Less: Impairment losses recognised (37,000) {(5,967)
58,000 -
Current investments:
Other investments, at marker value
Hong Kong listed shares - 13,466

The directors of the Company consider that the investment securities are held for long-term stratregic

purposes.

Note: Out of the balance of HK$95,000,000 at 31st March, 2002, an amount of HK$50,000,000 represents the
Group's investment in an investee company, Hennabun Management Inc. (“HMI”). HMI acts as an investment
holding company of companies engaged in the brokerage, commodity trading, margin financing, money
lending, corporate finance advisory services and proprietary trading activities.

At 31st March, 2002, an impairment loss of HK$37,000,000 has been recognised in the Group’s investment
in HMI to restate the carrying value of the investment to its estimated recoverable amount, with reference to
the price of the proposed new issue of shares in HMI subsequent to the balance sheet dare.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

22.

NOTES RECEIVABLE

THE GROUP

2002 2001
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

The notes receivable comprise:
5% convertible note receivable (“5% Note”) (a) 2,000 2,000
7.5% convertible note receivable (“7.5% Note”) (b) 53,000 53,000
55,000 55,000

Analysed as:

Within one year 55,000 53,000
More than one year but nor exceeding two years - 2,000
55,000 55,000
Less: Amount due within one year included in current assets (55,000) (53,000)
Amount due after one year - 2,000

Notes:

(a)

The 5% Note was issued on 16th January, 2001 by Asia Orient Holdings Limited (“Asia Orient”), a public
company listed on the Stock Exchange, and is redeemable on the second anniversary date of issue {the “5%

Note Maturity Date”).

The 5% Note is unsecured and beats interest at a rate of 5% per annum. Pursuant to the terms of the 5%

Note, the Group has the option to convert all or part of the 5% Note into shares of Asia Orient of
HKS$0.005 each as follows:

(1) at an initial price of HK$0.088, subject to adjustments, ac any time during the period from the date

of issue up to the date before the first anniversary date of issue; and

(i1) at an initial price of HK$0.09, subject to adjustments, at any time during the period after the first

anniversary date of issue up to the 5% Note Maturity Date.

During the year, the Group did not exercise any rights to convert any amount of the 5% Note into shares of

Asia Orient.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2002

22.

NOTES RECEIVABLE (consinued)

(b)

The 7.5% Norte was issued on 23rd October, 2000 by Cupac Technology Limited (“Cupac”), a former
subsidiary of China United Holdings Limited (“China United”), and is redeemable on the first anniversary

date of issue (the “7.5% Note Maturity Date”).

The 7.5% Note bears interest at a rate of 7.5% per annum, is unsecured and guaranteed by China United.

Pursuant to the terms of the 7.5% Note, the Group has the option to convert all or part of the 7.5% Note
into shares of Cupac of HK$0.01 each at an initial price of HK$0.80 per share, subject to adjustments, at

any time during the period from the date of issue up ro the 7.5% Note Marurity Date.

Cupac is a private limited company incorporated in Bermuda. It acts as an investment holding company and

holds an investment portfolio of internet-related business.

During the year, the Group did not exercise any rights to convert any amount of the 7.5% Note into shares

of Cupac.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR RESALE

THE GROUP?P

2002 2001
Notes HK$°000 HK$ 000

The Group’s properties held for resale are

held under the following lease terms:

Medium-term land use rights in the PRC (a) 107,742 107,742
Long leases in Hong Kong (b) - 10,500
107,742 118,242
Less: Impairment losses recognised (c) (77,742) (68,642)
30,000 49,600

Notes:

(a)

As explained in the Company's circular dated 26th July, 2001, the Group entered into a loan agreement (the
“Loan Agreemenc”) with a third party (the “Lender”), pursuant to which the Lender agreed to grant a
revolving loan facility to the extent of HK$30,000,000 to the Group and the Group transferred the title of
the Group’s properties held for resale (with a net carrying value of HK$30,000,000 at 31st March, 2002} to
a nominee of the Lender as securities for the obligations of the Group under the Loan Agreement. All the
proceeds received from the properties will belong to the Group. Upon repayment in full by the Group of all
sum due under the Loan Agreement, the Lender shall procure the transfer of the properties back to the

Group. There was no drawn down of che loan at 31sc March, 2002.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (onines)

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

23.

24.

25.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR RESALE (continued)

(b) At 31st March, 2001, the Group’s properties held for resale with an aggregate carrying value of HK$9,600,000
(after deducting impairment losses of HK$900,000) were pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities

granted to the Group.

(c) At the balance sheet date, the carrying amount of the Group’s properties held for resale are reduced to their
net realisable values which are determined by reference to the market selling price of similar properties net of

estimated cost of selling.

INVENTORIES
THE GROUP
2002 2001
HK$’000 HKS$000
Raw marerials - 6,086
Finished goods - 50,998
- 57,084

At 31st March, 2001, included in the inventories of the Group are raw materials and finished goods
amounting to HK$4,943,000 and HK$50,352,000 which are stated ac net realisable value.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group allows an average credit period of 60 days to its trade customers.

Included in trade and other receivables of the Group are trade receivables with the following aging

analysis:
THE GROUP
2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$000
Trade receivables:
0-30 days - 12,537
31-60 days - 1,002
61-90 days - 303
Over 90 days - 12
- 13,854
Other receivables 5,336 22,151
5,336 36,005
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SHORT-TERM LOANS

THE GROUP
2002 2001
HK$000 HK$°000

The short-term loans, net of allowances, comprise:

Unsecured loans 123,543
Secured loan (note below) 50,000

173,543 4,014

The short-term loans bear interest at prevailing marker rate and are due for repayment within one year.

The Group negotiates credit period to borrowers according to credit of individual borrower.

Note: The secured loan was secured by pledge of shares of property holding companies (“Property Companies”)
which are under the control of the borrowers. Pursuant to the agreement between the Group and the
borrowers, the Group was granted a call option to require the borrowers to sell all of the shares of the

Property Companies to the Group.

27. DEPGSITS MADE ON INVESTMENTS

THE GROUP

2002 2001
Notes HKS$’060 HK$ 000

The deposits made on investments comprise:
Deposits made on acquisition of a subsidiary (a) 87,909 87,508
Deposit made on acquisition of a note receivable (b) 22,750 22,750
Deposit made on acquisition of a land use right {c) 23,585 -
Deposit made on acquisition of an investee company (d) - 50,000
134,244 160,258
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27.

DEPOSITS MADE ON INVESTMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The amount represents deposits and related expenses paid for the acquisition of a subsidiary in the PRC.

In January 2001, the Group entered into two conditional agreements (the “Acquisition Agreements”) with
MEAEEEMBEEELAETER (Henan Provincial Yima Municipal State-owned Assets Administration
Bureau, “Henan Yima”) and A M E&Z ST A O EZ € (Henan Provincial Yima Municipal Kuangkou
Neighbourhood Commitree, “Henan Yima Committee”) to acquire 91.3% and 8.7% equity interest in ;3] F
HMEZEBR AT (Henan Xingbang Pharmacy Limited, “Xingbang Pharmacy”) from Henan Yima and
Henan Yima Committee, respectively, for a total consideration of RMB146,225,000 (equivalent to
HK$136,658,000).

Xingbang Pharmacy is a state-owned limited liability company registered in the PRC and principally engaged

in the manufacture, process, sale and export of traditional Chinese medicine in the PRC.

In 2001, deposits amounting to RMB85,131,000 (equivalent to HK$79,561,000) and RMB8,112,000
(equivalent to HK$7,582,000) have been paid by the Group to Henan Yima and Henan Yima Committee,
respectively. The remaining consideration of RMB52,982,000 (equivalent to HK$49,515,000) has been
included in note 45.

As Henan Yima and Henan Yima Committee have not obrtained the approval from the relevanrt authorities in
the PRC to complete the Acquisition Agreements, two termination agreements were entered into between
the Group and cach of Henan Yima and Henan Yima Committee on 29cth April, 2002. Pursuant to the
termination agreements, the parties agreed ro terminate the Acquisition Agreements and Henan Yima and
Henan Yima Committee agreed to refund the deposits paid by the Group, plus accrued interest, with an
aggregate amount of HK$88,802,000 to the Group.

Details of which are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 29th April, 2002.

The amount outstanding at 31st March, 2002 and 2001 represents deposit paid for the acquisition of 2 note
receivable (“4% Note”) to be issued by Cupac.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the amount was fully refunded, togecther with the accrued interest, to

the Group.

The amount outstanding at 31st March, 2002 represents deposit paid for the acquisition of a piece of land in

the PRC.

In November 2001, the Group entered into an agreement with a third party and pursuant to which the
Group agreed to acquire the land for a total consideration of RMB45,009,000 (equivalent to HK$42,461,000).
The land is held under a long-term land use right situated in Xian, the PRC. Ar 31st March, 2002, the
Group paid a deposit of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to HK$23,585,000) and the remaining consideration
of RMB20,009,000 (equivalent to HK$18,876,000) has been included in note 45.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the acquisition agreement was terminated and the amount was refunded
to the Group.

The amount outstanding at 31st March, 2001 represented deposit paid for the acquisition of an investee
company, HMI. The amount was reclassified as investments in securities, details of which are set out in note

21.

55

ARNTNTTTAT DEDNADT l 1 WARNCOAM BACTEDRN (HINT NINOCQ TTMITEND




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coninues

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

28. LOAN TO A SUBSIDIARY
The amount represented a loan granted by the Company to a former non-wholly owned subsidiary,

TFHI. The amount was unsecured, bore interest at a rate of 2% above Hong Kong prime rate per

annum. The amount was assigned to a third party during the year.
29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables of the Group are trade payables with the following aging analysis.

THE GROUP
2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$'000

Trade payables:

0-30 days - 4,964
31-60 days - 6,641
61-90 days - 3,162
Over 90 days - 2,270
- 17,037
Other payables 2,242 26,543
2,242 43,580
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30.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

THE GROUP
2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$ 000

The bank and other borrowings, which

are due within one year, comprise:

THE COMPANY
2002 2001
HK$000  HK$000

Trust receipts and import loans — 10,205 - -
Short-term bank loans — 8,536 - —
Other loan - 13,000 - —
Bank overdrafts - 5,024 - 4,694
- 36,765 - 4,694
Analysed as:
Secured - 8,536 - -
Unsecured - 28,229 - 4,694
- 36,765 - 4,694
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31.

32.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Minimum
lease payments
2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$°000

Amount payable under finance leases:

Present value
of minimum
lease payments
2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$'000

Within one year - 43 - 31
More than one year but not exceeding
two years - 16 - 10
More than two years but not exceeding
five years - 139 - 136
- 198
Less: Future finance charges - (21)
Present value of lease obligations - 177 - 177
Less: Amount due within one year
included in current liabilities - 31
Amount due after one year - 146

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its equipment under finance leases.

For the year ended 31st March, 2001, the average effective borrowing rate was 3.9%. Interest rates were

fixed at the contract date. All leases were on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been

entered into for contingent rental payments. The average lease term was 3 years.

AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due to subsidiaries of the Company were unsecured, interest-free and were fully repaid

during the year.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (oninuea)

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

33.

DEFERRED TAXATION

THE GROUP
2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$ 000
At 1st April 102 82
Disposal of subsidiaries (82) -
{(Credit) provided for the year (note 14) (20) 20
At 31st March - 102

The deferred rax liability at 31st March, 2001 was mainly atcributable to the excess of depreciation
allowances claimed for tax purposes over depreciation charged in the financial statements of certain

subsidiaries.

At 31st March, 2002, the Group and the Company had an unrecognised deferred tax asset of HK$4,834,000
(2001: HK$27,658,000) and HK$2,708,000 (2001: HK$4,641,000), respectively, which represents the
tax effect of timing differences arising as a result of tax losses available to set off against future assessable
profits. These deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the financial statements as it is uncerrain

that the benefit will be realised in the foreseeable future.
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34. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Balance at 1st April, 2000, ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each
Increase in February 2001

Balance at 31st March, 2001 and lst April, 2001,
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Capital reduction and sub-division

Balance at 31st March, 2002, ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each

Issued and fully paid:
Balance at 1st April, 2000, ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each
Repurchase of shares
Placement of shares

Exercise of share options

Balance at 31st March, 2001 and Ist April, 2001,
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Capirtal reduction

Placement of shares

Rights issue

Balance at 31st March, 2002, ordinary shares of
HKS$0.01 each

Number of
ordinary shares Amount
HK$ 000
15,417,833,415 1,541,783
4,582,166,585 458,217
20,000,000,000 2,000,000
180,000,000,000 -
200,000,000,000 2,000,000
714,838,015 71,483
(1,748,000 (174)
142,000,000 14,200
10,500,000 1,050
865,590,015 86,559
- (77,903)
173,118,000 1,731
2,077,416,030 20,774
3,116,124,045 31,161




NOTES TO THE FINA.NCIA.I.J STATEMENTS (tontinted)

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

34.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

(b)

During the year ended 31st March, 2001, the following changes in the share capital of the

Company took place:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 27th February, 2001, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$1,541,783,000 to HK$2,000,000,000.

The Company repurchased 1,748,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital
of the Company at an aggregate consideration of HK$539,000 through the Stock Exchange.

The ordinary shares repurchased were subsequently cancelled.

Pursuant to a placing agreement entered into on 19th December, 2000, the Company
issued 142,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at a price of HK$0.14 per share.

10,500,000 shares options were exercised at a subscription price of HK$0.205 per share,
resulting in the issue of 10,500,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company.

All the ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the then existing ordinary

shares of the Company in all respects.

During the year ended 31st March, 2002, the following changes in the share capiral of the

Company took place:

()

Pursuant to a special resolution at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held

on 27th February, 2001, the shareholders approved the following:

1. The issued share capital of the Company was reduced from an amount of
HK$86,559,000 to HK$8,656,000 by canceling paid up share capital of the Company
to the extent of HK$0.09 on each of the ordinary share in issue so that each issued
ordinary share of HK$0.10 in che share capital of the Company was treated as one
fully paid up ordinary share of HK$0.01 in the share capital of the Company (the
“Capital Reduction”);

2. The Company applied the credit arising from the Capital Reduction to a distriburable

reserve of the Company; and

3. Every ordinary share of HK$0.10 in the unissued share capital of the Company were
sub-divided into ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company.
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

The issued and unissued ordinary shares resulting from the above changes rank pari passu in

all respects in accordance with the clauses of the Company’s Articles of Association.

On 17th April, 2001, the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands confirmed the above alternation
of the issued capital of the Company and the changes of the issued capital of the Company
were completed and registered by the Cayman Islands’ Registrar of Companies on 19th
April, 2001.

Pursuant to a placing agreement entered into on 28th May, 2001, the Company issued
173,118,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.12 per share. The price
of HK$0.12 per share represents a discount of approximately 20% to the closing price of
the Company’s shares on 28th May, 2001 as quoted on the Stock Exchange. The net
proceeds of the placement of approximately HK$20,000,000 was used for additional working
capital of the Company.

These new ordinary shares were issued under the general mandate granted to the directors

of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 27th February, 2001.

On 24th August, 2001, the shareholders of the Company approved to issue, by way of
rights issue (the “Rights Issue”), of 2,077,416,030 rights shares (the “Rights Shares”) to the
holders of the then existing ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at a price of
HKS$0.10 for one Rights Share, on the basis of two Rights Shares for every one then existing
ordinary share of the Company. The net proceeds of the Rights Issue of approximately
HK$201,000,000 would be used towards future investment opportunities of the Company.

These new ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the then existing ordinary

shares of the Company in all respects.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS corinuca

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

35.

36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Pursuant to the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) of the Company adopted on 2nd July, 1999, the
Company may grant options under the Scheme to any full time employees, including execurive directors,

of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company.

A summary of the movements during the year in the share options granted under the Scheme is as

follows:
Exercise Lapsed
price per Outstanding during Outstanding
Date of grant share at 1.4.2001 the year at 31.3.2002
HKS$
27.8.1999 0.205 15,000,000 (15,000,000) -
8.9.1999 0.319 4,000,000 (4,000,000) -
1.3.2000 0.453 15,200,000 (15,200,000) -
34,200,000 (34,200,000) -

The share options were exercisable at any time within five years since the date of acceptance of the

options.
WARRANTS

On 11th October, 1999, a placing and underwriting agreement was entered into between the Company
and a placing agent, pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to place 114,500,000 warrants conferring
rights to subscribe an aggregate of HK$40,075,000 in cash for ordinary shares of the Company (the
“Warrants”) at an inidal issue price of HK$0.25 each to independent investors. Each Warrant would
entitle the holder to subscribe one new ordinary share in the Company at an initial subscription price of

HKS$0.35 per share, subject to adjustments.

Following the Share Placement of the Company in December 2000, the subscription price of the Warrants
was changed from HK$0.35 per share to HK$0.34 per share, subject to adjustments, in accordance with

the terms of the Warrant instrument.
No warrant holders had exercised any of their rights during the year.
The rights attached to the Warrants to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company expired on 3rd May,

2001 and all the outstanding Warrants were lapsed accordingly. As a result, the balance of the warrant

reserve has been transferred to accumulated losses.
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37. RESERVES

THE GROUP

At Lst April, 2000

Premium arising on issue
of shares

Expenses incurred in
connection with the
issue of shares

Shares repurchased and
cancelled:
Premium on shares

repurchased

Transfer

Goodwill reserve realised
upon the parsial disposal
of a subsidiary to
minority shareholders

Goodwill arising on acquisition
of an associate

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of goodwill arising
from the acquisicion of an
associate (note (d) below)

Exchange differences arising
on translatior. of overseas
operations

Net loss for the year, restated
(see note 3)

At 31st March, 2001 and at
Ist April, 2001, restated

Capital Reduction
(note 34(b)(1))

Premium arising on issue
of shares

Expenses incurred in
connection with the issue
of shares

Transfer (note (¢) below)

Exchange differences arising
on transfation of overseas
operations

Reserves released upon
disposal of discontinued
operations

Net loss for the year

At 31st March, 2002

Atcriburable to:
~ the Company and
subsidiaries
— an associate

Negative
goodwill
reserve Capital
Share Translation (goodwill redemption Special Warrant Distributable Accumulated

premium reserve reserve) reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
82,374 (2,181) 2,461 3 35,131 26,754 517,288 (340,240) 321,898
06,783 - - - - -~ - - 6,783
(520) - - - - - - - (520)
(365) - - - - - - - (365)
(174) - - 174 - - - - _

- - 1,770 - - - - - 1,770

- - (48,674) - - - - - (48,674)

- - 48,674 - - - - - 48,674

- 1,822 - - - - - - 1,822
- - - - - - - (84,147) (84,147)
88,098 (359) 4,231 485 35,131 26,754 517,288 (424,387) 247,241
~ - - - - - 77,903 - 77,903
206,010 - - - - ~ - - 206,010
(6,652) - - - - - - - (6,652}
- - - - - (26,754) - 26,754 -

- (226) - - - - - - (226)

- 585 (4,231) - - - - - (3.646)

- - - - - - - (47,675) (47,673)
287,456 - - 485 35,131 - 595,191 (445,308) 472,955
287,456 - - 485 35,131 - 595,191 (445,307) 472,936
- . . ; - - - ! n)
287,456 - - 485 35,131 - 595,191 (445,308) 472,955
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37- RESERVES (continued)

Capital
Share redemption Warrant  Contributed Distributable Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$000

THE COMPANY
At Ist April, 2000 82,374 311 26,754 39,521 517,288 (323,009) 343,239
Premium arising on issue

of shares 6,783 - - - - - 6,783
Expenses incurred in connection

with the issue of shares (520) - - - - - (520)
Shates repurchased and cancelled:

Premium on shares repurchased (365) - - - - - (365)

Transfer (174) 174 - - - - -
Net loss for the year - - - - - (39,177) (39,177)
At 31st March, 2001 and at

1st April, 2001 88,098 485 26,754 39,521 517,288 (362,186) 309,960
Capital Reduction (note 34(b)(i)) - - - - 77,903 - 77,903
Premium arising on issue

of shares 206,010 - - - - - 206,010
Expenses incurred in connection

with the issue of shares (6,652) - - - - - (6,652)
Transfer (note (e} below) - - (26,754) - - 26,754 -
Net loss for the year - - - - - (96,080) (96,080)
At 31st March, 2002 287,456 485 - 39,521 595,191 (431,512) 491,141
Notes:
(a) The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the aggregate amount of the share capital

and share premium account of a company which was the former holding company of the Group and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1992.

(b) The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the nominal value of the share
capital issued by the Company and the underlying net tangible asset value net of pre-acquisition dividends
and realised pre-acquisition investment property revaluation reserve of subsidiaries which were acquired by
the Company pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1992,

(c) The distributable reserve of the Group and the Company represents the aggregate of the credit arising from
the following:

(1) the reduction of nominal value of the consolidated shares from HK$0.10 each to HK$0.002 cach by
canceling HK$0.098 paid up on each issued share and the cancellation of share premium account as
at 31st Ocrober, 1998, after a transfer of HK$607,193,000 towards the elimination of the accumulated
losses of the Company as at 31st October, 1998; and

(i) Capital Reduction during the year as mentioned in note 34(b)(i) above.

(d) The amount represented a prior year adjustment in respect of the impairment loss recognised in respect of 65
goodwill arising from the acquisition of an associate during the year ended 31st March, 2001,

(e) The rights attached to the Warrants of the Company to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company
expired on 3rd May, 2001 and the balance of the warrant reserve was transferred to accumulated losses
accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (ouinuc

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

RECONCILIATION OF LOSS BEFORE TAXATION TO NET CASH (OUTFLOW)
INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000
Loss before taxation (54,494) (98,256)
Bank and other interest income (653) (8,107)
Interest expenses 2,122 2,936
Depreciation and amortisation 4,719 12,480
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries (24,525) (53,573)
Write back of provision of litigation (4,325) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of investment securities 37,000 -
Impairment losses recognised in respect of properties
held for resale 10,000 40,900
Loss on assignment of loan to a subsidiary 4,711 -
Allowance for (write back of allowances for) amounts due
from associates—net 1,780 (1,483)
Deficirt arising on valuation of investment properties 1,680 180
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 160 8,684
Write back of allowances for loan debtors - (16,000)
Gain on transfer of certain property interests to a jointly controlled entity - (10,696)
Gain on disposal of interest in a jointly controlled entity - (10,674)
Unrealised gain on other investments - (4,266)
Write back of allowances for guarantees given in connection with
a disposed subsidiary - (1,776)
Gain on disposal of investment properties - {975)
Dividend income - (76)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill arising from the
acquisition of an associate - 48,674
Forfeiture of deposit made on acquisition of a properry - 4,149
,El Loss on disposal of investment securities - 4,010
E Share of results of a jointly controlled entity - 209
E Allowances for bad and doubtful debts - 422
g Loss on disposal of properties under development - 47
é Decrease in properties held for resale 9,600 -
% Increase in inventories (2,323) (10,683)
> (Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables (27,831) 5,788
S {Increase) decrease in short-term loans (169,529) 77,353
g Decrease in option right acquired for acquisition of properties
= under development - 30,000
g Decrease in investments in securities 13,466 20,029
E Increase in trade and other payables 25,052 3,884
—— 66
% Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating activities (173,390) 43,180
2
=
2
%




NOTES TO THE FINA.NCIA.L STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

39. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

2002 2001
HKS$’000 HK$°000
Asset acquired:
Property, plant and equipment 630 -
Satisfied by:
Cash 630 -

The subsidiary acquired during the year did not have significant impact to the revenue or cash flows of

the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS coniness

For the year ended 31st March, 2002
40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
2002 2001
HK$000 HK$ 000
Net assets disposed of (net liabilities eliminated):
Property, plant and equipment 44,538 -
Inventories 59,407 -
Trade and other receivables 43,789 2,075
Tax recoverable 129 -
Bank balances and cash 21,372 4
Trade and other payables (62,241) -
Deposit received from disposal of properties held for resale - (58,261)
Bank and other borrowings (57,315) -
Deferred taxation (82) -
Obligations under finance leases (144) -
Net assets (liabilities) 49,453 (56,182)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 24,525 56,182
Minority interests (24,432) -
Negative goodwill realised on disposal (4,231) -
Translation reserve realised on disposal 585 -
45,900 -
Satisfied by:
Cash consideration received 45,900 -
é Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
5 connection with the disposal of subsidiaries:
=
§ Cash consideration received 45,900 —
2 Bank borrowings 15,875 -
§ Bank balances and cash disposed of (21,372) (4)
z
= Net inflow (outflow) of cash and cash equivalents in connection
g with the disposal of subsidiaries 40,403 (4)
=
3
Z The subsidiary disposed of during the year contributed HK$151,055,000 to the Group’s turnover and
=
— 68 HK$12,418,000 to the Group’s loss from operations. The business sold during the year contributed
% HK$6,957,000 to the Group’s net operating cash flows, paid HK$522,000 in respect of the net returns
& on investment and servicing of finance, paid HK$36,000 in respect of taxation, utilised HK$27,570,000
= g P P
2 for investing activities and raised HK$19,843,000 in respect of financing activities.
=
%




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS torsinued)

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

41.

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN FINANCING DURING THE YEAR

At Ist April, 2000

Issue of shares for cash on share
placement and exercise of
warrants and options

Expenses incurred in connection
with the issue of shares

Shares repurchased and cancelled

Partial disposal of a subsidiary to
minority shareholders

Loss attributable to the pardial
disposal of a subsidiary to the

minority shareholders by the Group

Dividend paid to minority
shareholders

Share of reserve by minority
shareholders

Share of loss by minority
shareholders

Redemption of converible notes

Transfer to capital redemption
reserve

Off-ser bank borrowings against
the proceeds from the disposal
of property under development
{note 43 (a))

[nceprion of finance leases
(note 43 (b))

Borrowings raised

Repayment of borrowings

At 31st March, 2001
and at Ist April, 2001

Capiral Reduction

[ssue of shares for cash on share
placement and Rights Issue

Expenses incurred in connection
with che issue of shares

Share of results by minority
shareholders

Dividends paid to minority
shareholders

Transfer (note 37(¢))

Disposal of subsidiaries

Borrowings raised

Repayment of borrowings

At 31st March, 2002

Amount

Obligations due to

under a jointly

Share Share  Warrant Convertible  Minority finance Bank Other  controlled
capital  premium reserve notes  interests leases loans loan entity
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS$000
71,483 82,374 26,754 70,000 487 114 8,703 - 37,449
15,250 6,783 - - - - - - -
- (520) - - - - - - -
(174) (365) - - - - - - -

- - - - 44,050 - - - -

- - - - 839 - - - -

- - - - (153) - - - -

- - - - 398 - - - -

- - - - (14,156) - - - -

- - - (70,000) - - - - -

- (174) - - - - - - -

- - - - - - (31,304) - -

- - - - - 21 - - -

- - - - - - 22,601 13,000 -

- - - - - (158) - - (37,449)
86,559 88,098 26,754 - 31,465 177 - 13,000 -
(77,903) - - - - - - - -
22,505 206,010 - - - - - - -
- (6,652) - - - - - - -

- - - - {7,009) - - - -

- - - - (24) - - - -

- - (26,754) - - - - - -

- - - - (24,432) (144) - (41,440) -

- - - - - - - 28,440 -

- - - - : (33) : - -
31,161 287,456 - - - — — ~ —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (onsinue

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

43.

44,

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2002
HK$000

Bank balances and cash 42,404
Trust receipts and import loans -
Short-term bank loans -

Bank overdrafts -

2001
HK$’000

37,306
(10,205)

(8,536)

(5,024)

13,541

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a)  During the year ended 31st March, 2001, proceeds receivable for the disposal of property under

development amounting to HK$31,304,000 were setcled by transferring the bank borrowings to

the purchaser.

(b)  During the year ended 31st March, 2001, the Group entered into finance leases in respect of

property, plant and equipment with a toral capital value at the inception of the leases of

HK$221,000.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(a) The Group as lessee

2002
HK$’000

Minimum lease payments paid by the Group under
operating leases in respect of premises during the year 24,407

2001
HK$'000

47,906




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS coninea

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

44.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

(a)

The Group as lessee (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

2002 2001

HK$000 HK$’000

Within one year 937 25,698
In the second to fifth year inclusive - 12,885
937 38,583

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for its office properties, factory
premises and retail shops. Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals are

fixed for an average of two years.

The Group as lessor

2002 2001
HKS$’000 HK$’000
Property rental income earned during the year 2,119 2,123

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the following future minimum

lease payments.

2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$000

Within one year 2,980 1,620
In the second to fifth year inclusive 2,536 2,012
5,516 3,632

The Group’s properties are expected to generate rental yield of 7.1% on an ongoing basis. All of

the properties held have committed tenants for an average of three years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

45.

46.

47.

COMMITMENTS
THE GROUP
2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000
Capirtal expenditure contracted for but not provided in the
financial statements in respect of acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 18,876 24,351

Ac 31st March, 2002, the Group had an outstanding commitment of HK$49,515,000 (2001:
HK$49,515,000) in respect of the acquisition of Xingbang Pharmacy in the PRC (note 27(a)).

The Company did not have any significant commitments at the balance sheet date.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

THE COMPANY

2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$000

Guarantees given to financial institutions in respect
of credit facilities extended to subsidiaries - 13,740

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at the balance sheet date.
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
The following significant events took place after 31st March, 2002:

{(a) On 10th April, 2002, the Group entered into an agreement with a third party and pursuant to
which the Group agreed to acquire the entire equity interest in a company, Up Keep Investments
Limited (“Up Keep”), for a total consideration of HK$250,000.

Up Keep is a private limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and acts as an
investment holding company. Up Keep has a right to acquire a 66.7% equity interest in P& 75 # %
B E R 2 7 (Shaanxi Weiguang Technology Co., Ltd. “Shaanxi Weiguang”), an equity joint
venture company incorporated in the PRC, by injecting a capital fund of RMB80,000,000 into
the joint venture company. The principal activity of Shaanxi Weiguang is the manufacturing of

GPS-based public security systems and devices in the PRC.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (onsinied

For the year ended 31st March, 2002

47.

48.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued)

(b)  On 13th May, 2002, the Group entered into an agreement with a third party, pursuant to which

the Group agreed to purchase a property situated in Shenzhen, the PRC, for a total consideration

of HK$182,868,000 from the third party.

Details of this are set out in the circular of the Company to the shareholders dated 27th May,

2002.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following transactions with the related parties:

Name of parties Nature of transactions
Notes
Ms. Yau Shum Tek, Purchase 100% (a)
Cindy and Mr. issued share
Wang Chun Lin capital of a company
Tu, Lai & Li Legal and professional (b)
fees paid by the Group
Vincent T.K. Legal and professional (c)
Cheung, Yap fees paid by the Group
& Co.
Fargood Limiced Real estate agency fees (d)
received by the Group
Come Fook Project management work (e)
Engineering awarded by the Group
Company

2002
HK$’000

630

2001
HK$'000

209

670

293

400

In the opinion of the directors, the transactions disclosed above were entered at terms determined and

agreed by the Group and the relevant party.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 3lstrMarch, 2002

48 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes:

() Ms. Yau Shum Tek, Cindy and Mr. Wang Chun Lin are executive directors of the Company.

(b) Mr. Tsang Link Carl, Brian, a former independent non-executive director of the Company, is a partner of
Tu, Lai & Li.
(c) Mr. Lee Kee Wai, Frank, a former independent non-executive director of the Company, is a partner of

Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co.

(d) Paul Y.-ITC Construction Holdings Limited (“Paul Y.~ITC") is the holding company of Fargood Limited.
ITC Corporation Limirted, a former substantial shareholder of the Company, is also a substantial shareholder
of Paul Y.-ITC.

(e) Paul Y.~ITC is the holding company of Come Fook Engineering Company.

49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st March, 2002 are as follows:

Nominal value Proportion
Place of of issued and fully of nominal
incorporation or paid ordinary value of issued/
establishment/ share capital/  registered capital held
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities

Directly Indirectly

% %
Brilliance Assets Limited British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands
Eastern Sunny Limiced Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Provision of
management service
Equity Spin Investments British Virgin US$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited Islands
Far Hero Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Property investment
Genesis Sun Holdings Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding

Limited
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For the year ended 315t March, 2002
49, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (consinued)
Nominal value Proportion
Place of of issued and fully of nominal
incorporation or paid ordinary value of issued/
establishment/ share capital/  registered capital held
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
% %
Globe Concept Holdings Bridish Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Lid. Islands
Goldall International Limited  Hong Kong HK$100,000 -~ 100 Provision of
management service
Hansom Finance Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Provision of finance
Longsun Lud. British Virgin US$! 100 - Investment holding
Islands
Peking Bay Assets Limited Bricish Virgin US§1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands
Smart Jump Corporation British Virgin USSt - 100 Trading and investment
Islands in securities
Time Achieve Profits British Virgin US$! - 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands
o
£
Top Achievers Co., Lid. British Virgin US$!1 - 100 Investment holding S
Islands =
v
C
Z
Well Faith Led. British Virgin US$! - 100 Property holding =
[slands g
Z
g
Win Advance Development Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Property investment £
Limited =
=
G
RREENEER PRC HK$25,000,000 - 100 Property holding Z
ERAA T
75 =
2
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally =
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give derails of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of i
=
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. %
Z
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS

Turnover

Loss before taxation

Taxation

Loss before minority interests

Minority interests

Net loss for the year

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets

Total liabilities

Minority interests

Shareholders’ funds

Year ended 31st March,

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
HKS$ 000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(As restated,
note below)
580,792 612,939 315,421 322,476 240,683
(766,203) (273,301) (187,701) (98,256) (54,494)
(7,532) 5,101 {1,635) (47) (190)
(773,735) (268,200) (189,336) (98,303) (54,684)
(803) (599) (148) (14,156) (7,009)
(772,932) (267,601) (189,188) (84,147) (47,675)
As at 31st March,
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HX$’000
(As restated,
note below)
1,221,109 795,903 687,848 445,889 506,441
(566,377) (379,032) (293,980) (80,624) (2,325)
(8,152) (6,775) (487) (31,465) -
646,580 410,096 393,381 333,800 504,116

Note: In accordance with Interpretation 13 “Goodwill ~ continuing requirements for goodwill and negative goodwill

previously eliminated against/credited to reserves”, the Group has restated and increased its previously reported net
loss for the year ended 31st March, 2001 and accumulated losses as at 31st March, 2001 by HK$48,674,000 for the

impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill arising from the acquisition of the associate during the year ended

31st March, 2001.




' SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES

At 31st March, 2002

Particulars of the Group’s properties at 31st March, 2002 are as follows:

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Property Purpose

Commercial Podium on Commercial
Ground Floor,

Block Nos. 1, 2 and 3

and Block Nos. 12 and 13,

Chuang’s Garden,

Chuang’s New Town,

Danshui County, Huiyang City,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China #

House No. 3 Splendor Type on Residential
Sixth Street,

House No.8 Splendor Type on
Fifth Street,

House No. 1 Glamour Type,
House No. 12 Glamour Type,
House No. 13 Glamour Type,
House No. 18 Glamour Type,
Phase I of Elephant Hill Villa
Rui Bian Village

Fu Rong Town

Huadu Cirty

Guangdong Province

The People’s Republic of China #

# Properties held under long-term land use rights

Gross floor area

3,127 sq.m.

886 sq.m.

Group’s interest

100%

100%
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At 31st March, 2002

PROPERTIES HELD FOR RESALE

Property Purpose  Gross floor area

Office Units 1,3,7 to 13,15 and 16 on Commercial 3,140 sq.m.
Level 3 and Units 1 to 3,5,6,8,9 and 16

on Level 59 Shun Hing Square (also

known as “King Land Building”) at

the junctions of Shennan Zhong Road,

Jiefang Road and Baoan Road

{currently known as No. 5002

Shennan Road East) Luohu District,

Shenzhen,

The People’s Republic of China +

Apartment Units 1,3,9 and 11 to 13 Residential 2,897 sq.m.
on Level 8, Units 9, 10 and 16 on Level 9,

Units 2,3,9 to 13 and 16 on Level 12

and Units 2,5,6,12 and 15 on Level 28

Shun Hing Square (also known as

“King Land Building”) at the junctions

of Shennan Zhong Road, Jiefang Road

and Baoan Road (currently known as

No. 5002 Shennan Road East) Luchu

District, Shenzhen,

The People’s Republic of China+

+ Properties held under medium-term land use rights

Group’s interest

100%

100%
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